
Date: 7 April 2020

S.No RFP Page No Section Name Statement as per RFP document Query by bidder Clarifications
1 NA Generic Generic Will Onsite-Offshore model be acceptable (Onsite being KIAL Head office 

India, Offshore being India-Delivery Centre) OR are there any specific 
requirements wrt location/working model of implementation partner (both 
during implementation and post-go-live support) OR can we propose as per 

best practices with optimal value?

For Kannur airport, there should be single point of contact for 
project delivery and post-go-live support.

Project should adhere to the timelines and post-go-live support 
should adhere to the SLAs. 

Strongly recommend to include the project organization structure 
in the technical proposal. 

Keeping the above in view, bidder may propose the rest of the 
details and / or practices.

2 15 2.2 "this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to avail 
the services of a reputed IT Company, to 

Procure, Design, Develop, Test and 
Implement Enterprise Software(as specified 
under clauses 3 to 8) for Kannur Airport and 

to provide support and maintenance of 
system for a minimum period of 5 years, 

commencing from the date when the entire 
system goes “live” and the free Post 

Implementation Warranty Support of six 
(6) months is completed."

Will this period  run concurrently with the AMS period of 5 years  , or does 
the bidder need to consider this period after the implementation period of 9 

months, followed by the AMS of 5 years.   Kindly confirm.

Warranty, Support and maintenance run in parallel.

3 24 2.24 Clause (ii) Penalty of 1% per week for delay beyond 6 
months.

The date of go live is D0+ 290 or 9 months. Why would penalty be levied on 
bidder after 6 months, this  is not rational. This was asked earlier, but the 

response was " as per RFP". Kindly amend this.

Clause 2.24 detailing the penalty is applicable for delay beyond 9 
months.

4 34 5.2 Environments Other than Production and DR environments, how many Non-Production 
environments (Development, Test, UAT, Training etc.) are to be planned for 

and provisioned in the cloud?

Until the project goes live, there should be one  instance for UAT, 
training and another instance for development and testing.

Post go live, one instance for development, teating, training and 
UAT.

5 29 3.  --> II The current requirement for software  
licenses is "to support 10 power users and 

240 staff for the chosen ERP ".

What is the expected annual growth in percentage for the number of 
users/staff over the next 7 years?

25-30% for next 7 years

Name of Project: Selection of Agency for Procurement, Design, Development, Testing, Implementation, Integration and Operation & Maintenance of Enterprise Software for Kannur International Airport. 

Ref #: KIAL/IT/RFP/1/2019



6 25 2.24 --> i "data migration that are essential for the 
implemented systems to perform as 

required"

What will be the expected amount of data (in GB) to be migrated into the 
newly implemented system? What is the anticipated  data growth in % year 
on year ? Although transaction volumes are mentioned in 5.1.1, a  guidance in 

Gigabytes would help.  

Data from December 2018 has to be migrated and it would be 
around 3GB.

7 60 7 --> 19 "The system will follow a standard in 
terms of how failover and redundancy of 
core systems is handled within Kannur 

Airport"

Could you please elaborate what exactly is required as part of this 
requirement? Kindly specify the standard.

Deployment architecture should allow the uptime as detailed in the 
RFP. Failover procedure has to be clearly defined by the bidder for 

Kannur airport's review and approval.

8 61 7 --> 32 "The system will support automated 
application failure recovery and data 
rebuild from central to distributed 

environment."

Could you please elaborate what exactly is required as part of this 
requirement?

Bidder should articulate the failire recovery process by adhering the 
best practises to deal with data backup, restoration in the event of 

system failure.

9 66 7 --> Interoperability "Portability between providers" Could you please elaborate what exactly is expected as part of this 
requirement?

In the event of any dependancies with other suppliers for interfaces, 
network and other 3rd party tools, bidder should clearly define the 
dependencies to facilitate seamless operations for Kannur airport

10 65 Mobile 
Compatibility 

The system must come with a mobile 
application accessible on mobile devices 

(phones, tablets) 

We are assuming that the seeded mobile apps (Provided by Oracle) will be 
used and there wont be any requirement of custom mobile app. Kindly 

confirm.

Mobile application should support Android and IOS devices, 
should has user friendly GUI.

11 11  Components of 
BOQ 

 ERP licenses to support 10 power users and 
about 240 staff

Can we assume that the total employee strength as of now is 250 and Payroll 
processing will be done only for these many employee in Oracle Payroll 

System. Please confirm.

Are there any process variations for various HR processes across different 
worker groups/criteria / locations ?

250 will be the employee strength by December 2021.

Airport growth projections are provided in section 5.1.1

Bidder should demonstrate their experience in this domain in 
understanding the business processes  at airport.

12 11  Components of 
BOQ 

 ERP licenses to support 10 power users and 
about 240 staff

currently, Is there any  system that is being used for handling HCM and 
Payroll processing ?

No.
Following are the approximate  number of users in each 

department. Based on this, the agency with their expertise may 
decide the number of potential users for each module in ERP.

Admin-3, Security-40, Commercial-5, IT-5,Engg & Maintenance-
20,Finance-10.Fire-75,Airport Operations-50, Secretarial Deptt-4

13 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Ability to apply Job Which  all are the job sites ( e.g. Monster, Naukri etc.)  where the vacancy 
will be posted?

Currently they are posted in Kannur Airport's website.

14 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic Is it ok to assume that all KIAL stakeholders ( core team) will  be co-located 
in Kannur KIAL Head office during key phases/workshops. Would there be 

any travel requirements for the implementation partner apart from 
mobilization at KIAL HO ?

Yes.

15 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic Please confirm on the following scope for Data Migration:

- We assume no historical data for HCM needs to be migrated. 
- Only current records of current active employees would need to be migrated.

- We assume KIAL will provide the Cleansed and Correct data in the agreed 
format for Data Migration. 

  - While creating the master data, there will be a need to capture 
historical instances like promotion, increments etc. 

- System should migrate the details provided by Human resources 
team and it includes staff details such as permanent role, contract 

basis, separated, sabbatical, interns etc
-yes



16 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic Is single sign-on implementation in scope? If yes, please provide details.
OR will it suffice if the users can access the EBS application with User Name 

and Password set in the EBS application?

User will access EBS application with unique user name and 
password

17 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic We assume a big-bang approach for go-live of all modules is preferred. Please 
confirm.

Agree in principle. However, strongly recommend to roll-out the 
modules as and when they are ready to simplify the cutover process 

and reduce the cutover risk.

18 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic We are assuming that any major projects upgrade /enhancements beyond the 
capacity of minor enhancements will be addressed through separate CRs/ 

SoWs and additional/ separate teams will be deployed for this. Please confirm 
our assumption.

Yes.

19 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic Is KIAL using any existing system for handling Performance, Learning and 
Recruitment ?

No.

20 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Masters Please list the type of employees that you track in HR System? E.g.. 
Employees, Ex‐Employees, Contractors, Interns, Temporary  Workers, 

Retirees,  etc.

We have categorized our employees  as contract and regular. But 
the rules and benefits applicable are same for both. A contract 
employee after completion of 5 years in the organisation will 

become eligible for regularization.
System should support the possible types of employees based on 

industry standards and practices.

21 49 Payroll Payroll What are the types of payroll which are currently in use (Eg: Monthly payroll 
for Salaried Employees, Weekly Payroll for Hourly Employees, Adhoc Payroll 

for Bonus Payments etc.)? Please list out those.

Currently its monthly payroll. 

22 50 Human Resource 
Management 

Generic Can you Please share the current Organization structure / chart of KIAL ? Will be shared with selected bidder.

23 50 Payroll Payroll What is the current system that captures time? How are the timesheets 
processed for people who do not have access to the system? Do you  have any 

Bio Metric systems etc. to record attendance ?

We monitor/capture attendance through Bio Metric system 
provided by ESSL.

24 50 Payroll Payroll In case of Salary payments, are they transferred to Employee Bank Account? 
How many banks are used for payroll disbursement?

Yes. Salaries are paid through bank transfers. The employee can 
have account with any bank of their choice. Company uses any of 

its bank accounts (it possesses about 10 accounts in about 5-6 
banks)

25 49 Human Resource 
Management 

Recruit and exit management Please provide the number of offer letter formats in KIAL. Is this more than 
one ?

Presently we have only one format. However, provision to have 
multiple format should be there.

26 51 Human Resource 
Management 

Learning and Development We are assuming that the learning content will be SCORM compliant and it 
will be made available to load in system.

Yes.



27 51 Human Resource 
Management 

Attendance & Leave Management 

Provision to apply leave through 
offline/online.

Please explain the process of applying for Leave Offline? Is it something where 
employees manager is applying for leave on behalf of employee when employee 

informs his Manager?

There should be a provision for managers to apply and approve 
leaves of his/her reportees on verbal request during emergencies.

28 60 7.38 ERP system should be able to interface with 
AODB,

Document Management system, E-retail 
POS,

Enterprise Integration and messaging 
systems.

How many interfaces/integrations exist between ERP with the AODB, 
Document Management system, E-retail POS, Enterprise Integration and 
message systems? Sharing a functional architecture of these to be retained 

applications would help.

Detailed functional architecture will be shared with selected 
bidder. Section 7.38 lists the systems to be interfaced. Bidder should 

use their experience in this domain to estimate the work and 
include the details in assumptions for ratification by Kannur 

airport.

29 60 7.38 ERP system should be able to interface with 
AODB,

Document Management system, E-retail 
POS,

Enterprise Integration and messaging 
systems.

What is the average message size in KB being transferred through each of 
these interfaces and what is the anticipated total daily message count ? 

Current passenger volumes are shared in section 5.1.1. Bidder should 
estimate the size based on the experience and include the basis of 

estimation in the proposal.

30 60 7.38 ERP system should be able to interface with 
AODB,

Document Management system, E-retail 
POS,

Enterprise Integration and messaging 
systems.

Based upon the total count of integrations, can you pls share the count of 
critical, high and medium complexity interfaces based upon functionality, 

sensitivity or transformation?

All the data is sensitive and the bidder must adopt security 
standards as mentioned in the RFP. These interfaces are generally 

standard across airport business operations.

31 46 Treasury Point # 24 Ability to import importization schedule of 
loans

 Kindly clarify this requirement. Import "importization". Ability to record the loan details, track the payment schedules and 
actual payments 

32 49 Project 
Management # 31 e

A graphical requirements of workers 
available for projectss.

IS this n essential  requirement. KIAL are not an EPC company  and allocation 
of workers to available projects appears to be an overkill. Kindly clarify.

While dealing with projects, system should be able to flag the 
resource availability based on the skillset required.

33 91 Note 5 The license cost shall be based on the actual 
licenses utilized.

Since the requirement is to provide a subscription based ERP with the 
number of licenses already informed in the RFP, the price will be charged 

accordingly. It is not possible to change the commercials later.

Bidder should advise the best practise and procedure to support the 
airport growth.

34 We would request you to have separate milestones for the below during 
AMC.  for e.g.  
Milestone 1 A : License Payment instalment during AMC 
Milestone 1 B: Services payment instalment during AMC 
Milestone 1 C : Cloud and Infrstructure charges during AMC

Request KIAL to have this provision in the Price Bid format

Payment milestones are revised. Bidder can indicate the split in the 
technical proposal and must state the underlying assumptions or 
implications if any

35 2.22. Payment 
Terms and Schedule

We understand that the AMC payments will be paid in quarterly instalments. 
We need clarity on the Implementation & warranty. Request KIAL to 
explicitly mention the payment terms for 
1. Implementation and Warranty
2. AMC period

Payment terms are revised and refer to recent clarifications.



36 2.31. Contract 
Termination

The Kannur Airport may, for its convenience 
and with 30 days prior written notice to the 
Contractor, terminate this contract in whole 
or in part and without payment of any 
penalty or incurring any further obligation 
to the Contractor. The Contractor shall be 
entitled to compensation upon submission 
of invoices and proof of claim for supplies 
and services provided in compliance with 
this contract up to and including the date of 
termination.

Termination: 
We need to pay OEMs for licenses upfront and give a commitment for 5 years. 
So in the unfortunate event of a termination of SI contract during 
implementation & warranty or during AMC, we would request that the 
committed License payment installments be completed to the System 
integrator immediately upon termination.

In the RFP section 3, Scope of Work, address this point of licenses 
from OEM and its transfer to Kannur Airport.

37 28 II Supply, Installation, configuration, Data 
Migration, Documentation, Testing, 
Training and commissioning of the chosen 
ERP solution along necessary licenses to 
support 10 power users and 240 staff for the 
chosen ERP. The Contractor shall ensure 
the licenses are valid and available to the 
Kannur Airport users for the entire duration 
of the contract from Go-Live including the 
warranty period and O&M contract period. 
Contractor may use his discretion to 
procure the licenses at an early date as 
required for the development and 
implementation, but this shall not hinder 
the availability of licenses to Kannur Airport 
users after Go-Live as indicated above.

 License counts for users: We understand that KIAL has 240 employees.  HR 
modules are licneses by employees, but  User licenses should be much lower 
than these. Hence Will request you to compute and provide us the user count 
breakup Functional area wise listed below:  pls note we need functional area 
wise only e.g Finance, Purchasing, Projects, Loans & Treasury, Maintenance , 
but the larger list is being given for helping you compute this internally :
1. General Ledger ( Accounting , JV passing and Book closing) : 
2. Payables ( Supplier invoice entry and payments) 
3. Receivables: ( Receipts from customers, non Trade receipts like EMD, SD 
etc.) 
4. Fixed assets users ( asset addtion, asset sale and running depreciation) 
5. Cash & Bank management ( Bank account transfers & Bank Reconciliation 
) 
6. User counts for Purchase department users 
7. User counts for persons  raising purchase requisitions 
8. User in Central and Sub store(s) , user dept e.g. aircraft maintenance bays 
etc. .  ( For material requisitions and receipts of material from POs or internal  
requisitions  to central store and receipts from central store .) 
9. Real estate ( leased out to customers) user counts 
10 Loans and Treasury users. 
11. Project Costing / Management users. 
12. IT dept. users ( super user ) 
13. Maintenance Department users ( include user department counts who will 
raise maintenance requests and also people from maitnenance who will act on 
these requests) 

The term of the software license and ATS should be fixed and not dependent 

Bidder shall plan to deploy the production system licenses from the 
date / month of cutover. 

Please include department wise staff count:
1. Finance (including procurement) - 
2. Human Resources - 
3. Facilities Maintenance - 
4. Information Technology - 
5. Adminstration - 
6. Safety & Security - 
7. Projects - 
8. Commercial - 
9. Service lines (Contracts, Legal etc) - 

38 Product License Payment for license fee shall be paid in equal installements over 5 
years period, starting from the date system go-live date.



39 Payment Terms for Product of 
implementation & license fee & other 

upfront charges 

1.  License fee shall be paid in equal installements over 5 years 
period

2. Implementation charges shall be payabale as follows:
      10% upon Contract signature

      15% upon design signoff
      20% upon system and interfaces delivery

      15%  upon sucessful UAT signoff
      15%  upon go-live

      25%  upon completion of warranty period
3. Maintenance fee on quarterly basis in areas

40 The EMD / Security Deposit may be 
forfeited

a. If a Bidder withdraws the bid or amends 
the bid in anyway or increases the quoted 

prices during the period of bid validity or its 
extended period, if any;

b. In case of a successful bidder, fails to sign 
the Contract or to furnish Performance Bank 

Guarantee within specified time i.e. 30 
(Thirty) days from the date of issue of award 
of work in accordance with the format given 

in the RFP.
c. During the bid process, if a Bidder 

indulges in any such deliberate act as would 
jeopardize or unnecessarily delay the 

process of bid evaluation and finalization. 
The decision of the Kannur International 

Airport Limited regarding forfeiture of the 
Bid Security shall be final & and binding 

upon bidders.
d. During the bid process, if any information 

is found false/ fraudulent then Kannur 
International Airport Limited shall reject 
the bid and if necessary, initiate action.

Request to Delete Forfeiture of EMD shall not be applicable if Kannur airport 
disqualifies the bid during evaluation stage. 



41 2.28 Liability Clause
A. Any fine imposed by agencies including 

legal agencies against the contractor’s 
personnel directly or indirectly involved in 

the implementation and O&M support, 
should be fully borne by the contractor.

B. If a third-party claim that deliverables the 
contractor provided to Kannur Airport 
infringe that third party’s copy right or 
intellectual proprietary, the contractor 
should be responsible to defend Kannur 

Airport against that claim at its expense and 
pay all costs, damages, court charges etc. 
that a court finally awards or the amount 
included in a settlement of the claim, as 

applicable.
C. In the event that Bidder is delayed or 

prevented from performing its obligations 
due to failure by the Kannur Airport or its 
employees or agents or delay on the part of 
or on behalf of Kannur Airport, then Bidder 
shall be allowed an additional period of time 

to perform its obligations and unless 
otherwise agreed the additional period shall 

be equal to the amount of time for which 
Bidder is delayed or prevented from 

performing its due to such failure or delay 

Liability : A.  Any fine imposed by agencies including legal agencies against 
the contractor’s personnel directly or indirectly involved in the 

implementation and O&M support, should be fully borne by the contractor.
                B. If a third-party claim that deliverables the contractor provided to 

Kannur Airport infringe that third       party’s copy right or intellectual 
proprietary, the contractor should be responsible to defend Kannur Airport 

against that claim at its expense and pay all costs, damages, court charges etc. 
that a court finally awards or the amount included in a settlement of the 

claim, as applicable. 
C. Notwithstanding the above,  the Contractor  shall not be liable for any 

indirect, punitive, consequential or incidental loss, damage, claims, liabilities, 
charges, costs, expense or injury  (including, without limitation, loss of use, 

data, revenue, profits, business and for any claims of any third party claiming 
through the Contractor) that may arise out of or be a result of this Agreement. 
The financial liabilities of the Contractor  arising out of this claim or any other 

claim as mutually agreed upon  or otherwise under this Agreement, 
irrespective of the form of claim, shall not exceed the fees received by it under 

this contract during the six months preceding the date of the first claim by 
the purchaser.  

D. In the event that Bidder is delayed or prevented from performing its 
obligations due to failure by the Kannur Airport or its employees or agents or 

delay on the part of or on behalf of Kannur Airport, then Bidder shall be 
allowed an additional period  of time to perform its obligations to be mutually 
determined by the Parties and unless otherwise agreed the additional period 
shall be equal to the amount of time for which Bidder is delayed or prevented 
from performing its due to such failure or delay on the part of or on behalf of 

the Kannur Airport.

2.28 LIABILITY CLAUSE (Revised as)
A. Any fine imposed by agencies including legal agencies against the 
contractor’s personnel directly or indirectly involved in the 
implementation and O&M support, should be fully borne by the 
contractor.
B  If a third-party claims that deliverables the contractor provided 
to Kannur Airport infringe that third party’s copy right or 
intellectual proprietary, the contractor should be responsible to 
defend Kannur Airport against that claim at its expense and pay all 
costs, damages, court charges etc. that a court finally awards or the 
amount included in a settlement of the claim, as applicable.
C. In the event that Bidder is delayed or prevented from performing 
its obligations due to failure by the Kannur Airport or its employees 
or agents or delay on the part of or on behalf of the Kannur Airport, 
then Bidder shall be allowed an additional period of time to perform 
its obligations and unless  otherwise agreed the additional period 
shall be equal to the amountof time for which Bidder is delayed or 
prevented from performing its  obligations due to such failure or 
delay on the part of or on behalf of the Kannur Airport.
D The Total cumulative liability on the bidder arising from or 
relating to this agreement shall be limited as follows:
(a) To the total contract value excluding the O&M cost, during the 
development and implementation & the warranty period.
(b) To the total O&M contract value during the O&M period
E. In no event shall either party be liable  for any  indirect damages, 
loss or expenses arising from business interruption, lost business, 

42 2.31 The Kannur Airport may, for its convenience 
and with 30 days prior written notice to the 
Contractor, terminate this contract in whole 

or in part and without payment of any 
penalty or incurring any further obligation 
to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall be 
entitled to compensation upon submission 
of invoices and proof of claim for supplies 
and services provided in compliance with 

this contract up to and including the date of 
termination

Termination - The Kannur Airport Either party may, for its convenience and 
with 30 90 days prior written notice to the Contractor, terminate this 

contract in whole or in part and without payment of any penalty or incurring 
any further obligation to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall be entitled to 

compensation upon submission of invoices and proof of claim for supplies and 
services provided in compliance with this contract up to and including the 

date of termination. along with the mentioned In the event of termination by 
Kannur International Airport, the Contractor shall be paid for the:

a) Goods delivered
b) Services rendered
c) Work in progress

d) Third party orders in pipeline which cannot be cancelled despite 
Contractor's best efforts and unrecovered investments till the date of 

termination.

Referring to earlier clarifications (corrigendum-3), this clause has 
been revised and clarified that payment will be made for the 

services delivered, works in progress and / or in pipeline on prorate 
basis. For works in progress and / or in pipeline, Kannur airport 

shall be notified in the regular project status briefings.



43 2.26 Where the Purchaser deems necessary, it 
shall have the right to require replacement 

of any subcontractor with another 
subcontractor and the Contractor shall in 

such case terminate forthwith all 
agreements/contracts other arrangements 
with such subcontractor and find suitable 
replacement for such subcontractor to the 

satisfaction of the Purchaser at no additional 
charge. Failure to terminate all 

agreements/contracts with such sub-
contractors, shall amount to a breach of the 

terms hereof

Involvement of Sub Contractors - Where the Purchaser deems necessary, it 
may request shall have the right to require for replacement of any 

subcontractor with another subcontractor, subject to mutual agreement 
between the Contractor and Purchaser  and the Contractor shall in such case 
terminate forthwith all agreements/contracts other arrangements with such 
subcontractor and find suitable replacement for such subcontractor to the 

satisfaction of the Purchaser at no additional charges to be borne by the 
Purchaser. Failure to terminate all agreements/contracts with such sub-

contractors, shall amount to a breach of the terms hereof

To be replaced by: Contractor shall ensure that the in the event of any under 
performance by the sub contractor, the Contractor must do the needful to 
restore the service as per the contract with no additional costs to Kannur 

Airport

Agreed.  As long as the services levels are adhered to the contract, 
Kannur airport would not request to replace any subcontractor.

In the event of under performance by any subcontractor,
prime contractor must do the needful to restore
the service levels as agreed in the Contract at no

additional cost to Kannur airport.

44 2.26 The Contractor indemnifies and shall keep 
indemnified Purchaser against any losses, 

damages, claims or such other implications 
arising from or out of the acts and omissions 
of such subcontractor. The Contractor shall 

be responsible for making all payments to 
the subcontractor as may be necessary, in 
respect of any Services performed or task 
executed, and the Purchaser shall not be 
responsible for any part or full payment 
which is to due to such subcontractor.

Involvement of Sub-contractors The Contractor indemnifies and shall keep 
indemnified Purchaser against any losses, damages, claims or such other 

implications arising from or out of the acts and omissions of such 
subcontractor. The Contractor shall be responsible for making all payments to 
the subcontractor as may be necessary, in respect of any Services performed or 

task executed, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible for any part or full 
payment which is to due to such subcontractor.

Refer to the response to queries published on 29 Feb



45 2.29 Bidder shall warrant that the delivered 
software meets the requirements as 

specified in the detailed Specifications of the 
Application Software. This warranty shall 
remain valid for six (6) months after the 

system Go Live at Kannur Airport. Kannur 
Airport shall promptly notify Bidder in 

writing of any ‘defect’ in the software arising 
due to the reasons solely and entirely 

attributable to Bidder under this warranty. 
Upon receipt of such notification, Bidder 

shall remove the ‘defect’ in the application 
software. Warranty shall also include 

changes or modifications that becomes 
essential for giving the intended 

performance of the system, as specified in 
the approved Specifications. In case of 

breach of this warranty, Kannur Airport’s 
exclusive remedy will be to obtain (1) the re-
performance of the service or the correction 

or replacement of any service deliverable 
that provides substantially similar 

functionality or (2) if both parties mutually 
determines that such remedies are not 

practicable, a refund of the fees allocable to 
that part of the deliverable will be due to 

Kannur Airport if already paid by the 

Warranty:  The Purchaser  represents and warrants that it has or will obtain 
or will arrange for all requisite approvals, consents, logon Credentials to carry 

on its business, and for the Bidder to undertake and perform the Services. 
Since the Bidder is acting as a reseller of completed products, it  shall “pass‐

through” any and all warranties and indemnities received from the 
manufacturer or licensor of the products and, to the extent, granted by such 

manufacturer or licensor, to the Purchaser  who shall be the beneficiary of 
such manufacturer’s or licensor’s warranties and indemnities. In addition to 

the same, the Bidder  shall not provide any additional warranties and 
indemnities with respect such products. Bidder shall warrant that the 
delivered software meets the requirements as specified in the detailed 

Specifications of the Application Software. This warranty shall remain valid 
for six (6) months after the system Go Live at Kannur Airport. Kannur 

Airport shall promptly notify Bidder in writing of any ‘defect’ in the software 
arising due to the reasons solely and entirely attributable to Bidder under this 
warranty. Upon receipt of such notification, Bidder shall remove the ‘defect’ in 

the application software subject to additional costs to be borne by the 
Purchaser. Warranty shall also include changes or modifications that becomes 
essential for giving the intended performance of the system, as specified in the 

approved Specifications, at additional costs, if any to be borne by the 
Purchaser. In case of breach of this warranty, Kannur Airport’s exclusive 

remedy will be to obtain (1) the re-performance of the service or the 
correction or replacement of any service product deliverable that provides 

substantially similar functionality subject to the costs to be borne by Kannur 
Airport or (2) if both parties mutually determine that such remedies are not 

practicable, a refund of the fees allocable to that part of the product 
deliverable will be due to Kannur Airport if already paid by the Kannur 

Any upgrades /changes/ modifications shall have to be borne by the 
Purchaser, as such upgradations do not fall in the category of 

‘Warranties’, if they are not included as functional and / or non‐
fucntional requirements in the RFP. Also refer to earlier  response 

to queries published on 29 February.

46 EMD-The bidder shall pay, a tender 
document fees of INR 50,000 /- (Rupees 

Fifty Thousand Only) + 18% GST and 
Earnest Money Deposit / Security Deposit of 

Bid security of INR 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees 
One crore only). The Security Deposit /EMD 

is required to protect the tenderer against 
risk of Bidder`s conduct, which would 

warrant the forfeiture of security

Request you to please consider the EMD amount to the maximum of 10 Lacs 
& also deletion of'  The Security Deposit /EMD is required to protect the 

tenderer against risk of Bidder`s conduct, which would warrant the forfeiture 
of security'

As per the RFP


